



The Global Language of Business

## General Specifications Change Notification (GSCN)

WR #	GSCN Name	Effective Date
23-060	Multiple barcodes management practices GTIN & Attributes rule	Jul 2023

### 1 **Associated Work Request (WR) Number:**

WR-21-001 (Future State ASP request), WR-22-031 (ASP future state conformance requirements), WR-22-172 (section 8 optimisation), WR-22-327 (HRI), WR-22-376 (Multiple Barcodes)

### 2 **Background:**

Phase 2 of the 2D in Retail work addresses the changes required for cross-application standards and rules to be used during both the transition period and the future state of 2D barcodes at retail point-of-sale (POS), which were defined during phase 1. The second set of cross application rules to be updated is the section on multiple barcode management practices for trade items scanned in general retail.

3

### 4 **Disclaimer:**

GS1®, under its IP Policy, seeks to avoid uncertainty regarding intellectual property claims by requiring the participants in the Work Group that developed this **General Specifications Change Notification** to agree to grant to GS1 members a royalty-free licence or a RAND licence to Necessary Claims, as that term is defined in the GS1 IP Policy. Furthermore, attention is drawn to the possibility that an implementation of one or more features of this Specification may be the subject of a patent or other intellectual property right that does not involve a Necessary Claim. Any such patent or other intellectual property right is not subject to the licencing obligations of GS1. Moreover, the agreement to grant licences provided under the GS1 IP Policy does not include IP rights and any claims of third parties who were not participants in the Work Group.

Accordingly, GS1 recommends that any organisation developing an implementation designed to be in conformance with this Specification should determine whether there are any patents that may encompass a specific implementation that the organisation is developing in compliance with the Specification and whether a licence under a patent or other intellectual property right is needed. Such a determination of a need for licencing should be made in view of the details of the specific system designed by the organisation in consultation with their own patent counsel.

THIS DOCUMENT IS PROVIDED "AS IS" WITH NO WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, NONINFRINGEMENT, FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY WARRANTY OTHER WISE ARISING OUT OF THIS SPECIFICATION. GS1 disclaims all liability for any damages arising from use or misuse of this Standard, whether special, indirect, consequential, or compensatory damages, and including liability for infringement of any intellectual property rights, relating to use of information in or reliance upon this document.

GS1 retains the right to make changes to this document at any time, without notice. GS1 makes no warranty for the use of this document and assumes no responsibility for any errors which may appear in the document, nor does it make a commitment to update the information contained herein.

GS1 and the GS1 logo are registered trademarks of GS1 AISBL.

**Figure 4.14.3-1.** Short forms by date type

Date type	Short form
Production	PROD
Packaging	PACK
Best Before	BEST
Expiration	EXP

AIDC techniques are suggested over any manual process to ensure accurate and timely stock rotation. Every effort should be made to adopt an automated process to increase productivity and date management.

#### 4.15 Multiple barcode management practices for trade items (cross-sector)

When additional barcodes are introduced into an existing scanning environment or business application, all application standard conformant existing barcodes must SHALL remain acceptable choices. This section provides a set of management practices intended to permit the use of multiple barcodes on the same package/trade item.

**Note:** Additional barcodes encoded with GTIN and GTIN attributes such as lot number, serial number or expiry date are also stored in the respective master data records.

Commented [DM16]: WR22-376 Multi barcode mgt

Commented [DM17]: WR23-056 Symbol placement GSCN

##### 4.15.1 Multiple barcode management practices for trade items (all sectors)

1. **Current standards:** All scanning systems SHALL deploy symbology identifiers (see section 5.1.3) and when using GS1 Application Identifiers, process them according to GS1 rules (see section 7.8).
2. **Use of GTIN:** All GS1 data carriers on a single trade item SHALL encode the same GTIN.
3. **Use of GTIN attributes:** When the GTIN and GTIN attributes occur in multiple data carriers on a single trade item, the attribute values SHALL be the same.
4. **GTIN plus attribute(s) flag:** Where applications require GTIN plus additional data to be captured in a multiple barcode symbol environment, modifications to systems should SHOULD be made to automate this requirement to optimise efficiency.
5. **Adjacent placement:** Wherever When two symbols/barcodes can be used for the same application (i.e., point-of-sale, point of care, POS, POC, general distribution) they SHOULD be placed adjacent to each one another while maintaining their - Adjacent placement of symbols SHALL never infringe on symbol Quiet Zones. The orientation (stack or row of symbols/barcodes) or sequence (which symbol/barcode is placed on the left, right, top, or bottom) shall SHALL be determined by the brand owner.
  - a. Where adjacent placement on one panel/surface of an object is not possible, the barcodes SHOULD be placed on an adjoining surface of the object. is not permitted based on space limitations, placement on adjacent panels SHOULD be attempted. This practice does not supersede any section 6 symbol/barcode placement rule (e.g., 8 mm (0.3 inch) free space between symbols/barcodes and panel edge-).
6. **Non-adjacent placement:** Wherever When two symbols/barcodes are used for different applications (e.g., point-of-sale, POS, B2C extended packaging), they SHOULD be placed non-adjacent to one another.
7. **Obscure placement:** Wherever When a symbol/barcode is used for production control purposes only (e.g., Data Matrix encoded with a non-GS1 syntax to match label to product), it SHOULD be made as obscure as possible or even obstructed on the trade item package.
5. **Product URL barcode indication:** For barcodes encoding AI (01) (8200) see section 4.14 Human readable interpretation rules, rule 12.)
8. **Use of GS1-128 or GS1 2D symbol/barcode as supplemental symbol/barcode with EAN/UPC or ITF-14 as the main symbol/barcode:** In general retail and general distribution, where EAN/UPC or ITF-14 is used to encode the GTIN and where a GS1-128 or GS1 2D symbol

Commented [DM18]: WR22-376 Multi barcode mgt



barcode is used to encode GTIN attributes, the same GTIN SHALL be encoded in all GS1 symbols/barcodes.

~~6-9.~~ **GS1-128 as supplemental barcode:** When an EAN/UPC or ITF-14 is used to encode GTIN and where GS1-128 is used to encode GTIN attributes, GS1-128 SHOULD encode GTIN and the GTIN attributes in a single barcode to ensure accurate data association.

~~7-10.~~ **Use of GS1 2D symbol barcode as supplemental symbol barcode with GS1-128 as main symbol barcode:** In general distribution, where GS1-128 is used to encode GTIN and attributes, these element strings at a minimum SHALL be encoded in the supplemental GS1 2D symbol barcode.

#### 4.15.2 GS1 multiple barcode management practice for general retail

In addition to the requirements outlined in section 4.15.1, the following rules applies apply to the use of multiple barcodes for general retail.

1. **Use of GTIN:** All GS1 barcodes on a single trade item SHALL encode the same GTIN.

2. **Use of GTIN attributes:** When the GTIN and GTIN attributes occur in multiple barcodes on a single trade item, the attribute values SHALL be the same.

1. **Migration to 2D barcodes:** A GS1 DataMatrix, QR Code (GS1 Digital Link URI) or Data Matrix (GS1 Digital Link URI), SHALL be used in addition to the EAN/UPC, or a GS1 DataBar retail POS family of barcodes, to ensure stakeholders that are not yet able to consistently scan 2D barcodes are not negatively impacted. Application Standard Profiles in section 8 provide information on conformance requirements for the transition period and future use of 2D barcodes at retail POS.

Commented [DM19]: WR22-376 Multi barcode mgt

When there is more than one barcode with GTIN on trade items, it is essential that the POS systems will ensure:

- The system SHALL only process one set of the desired data in the final transaction.
- Scanning systems SHOULD only produce one acknowledgement (e.g., beep) when multiple barcodes are scanned from the same trade item.

**Important:** If the points above are not implemented, unintended POS transactions may occur.

Commented [DM20]: WR23-056 Symbol Placement GSCN

2. **Placement when using a 2D barcode for multiple applications:** When a 2D barcode will be scanned in multiple applications (e.g., point-of-sale, inventory management and consumer engagement), placement for POS takes precedence. The same adjacent placement rules as stated in section 4.15.1 are applicable.

Commented [DM21]: WR22-376 Multi barcode mgt

**Note:** Where GS1 DataBar and 2D barcodes are used, GTIN and GTIN attributes SHALL be encoded in a single barcode to ensure accurate data association

**GTIN in GS1 DataBar processing:** In order to facilitate migration away from a multiple barcode environment where one retailer requires EAN/UPC and another GS1 DataBar Expanded, at a minimum, all general retailers SHALL be able to process the AI (01) GTIN from GS1 DataBar Expanded.

Commented [DM22]: WR22-376 Multi barcode mgt

#### 4.15.3 GS1 multiple barcode management practices for healthcare

In addition to the requirements outlined in section 4.15.1, the following rules apply to the use of multiple barcodes for healthcare.

1. **GTIN in GS1 DataMatrix and GS1 DataBar processing (retail healthcare):** In order to facilitate migration away from a multiple barcode environment where one retail pharmacy requires EAN/UPC and another retail pharmacy requires GS1 DataMatrix or GS1 DataBar